

82 Jan. 18

# STATE REGISTER

STATE OF MINNESOTA



**VOLUME 6, NUMBER 29**

**January 18, 1982**

**Pages 1309-1332**



---

---

**Printing Schedule for Agencies**

| Issue Number                 | *Submission deadline for Executive Orders, Adopted Rules and **Proposed Rules | *Submission deadline for State Contract Notices and other **Official Notices | Issue Date    |
|------------------------------|---|--|---------------|
| <b>SCHEDULE FOR VOLUME 6</b> |   |  |               |
| 30                           | Monday Jan 11   | Monday Jan 18  | Monday Jan 25 |
| 31                           | Monday Jan 18   | Monday Jan 25  | Monday Feb 1  |
| 32                           | Monday Jan 25   | Monday Feb 1   | Monday Feb 8  |
| 33                           | Monday Feb 1  | Monday Feb 8   | Monday Feb 15 |

\*Deadline extensions may be possible at the editor's discretion; however, none will be made beyond the second Wednesday (12 calendar days) preceding the issue date for rules, proposed rules and executive orders, or beyond the Wednesday (5 calendar days) preceding the issue date for official notices. Requests for deadline extensions should be made only in valid emergency situations.

\*\*Notices of public hearings on proposed rules and notices of intent to adopt rules without a public hearing are published in the Proposed Rules section and must be submitted two weeks prior to the issue date.

Instructions for submission of documents may be obtained from the Office of the State Register, 506 Rice Street, St. Paul, Minnesota 55103, (612) 296-0930.

---

The *State Register* is published by the State of Minnesota, State Register and Public Documents Division, 117 University Avenue, St. Paul, Minnesota 55155, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 15.0411. Publication is weekly, on Mondays, with an index issue in September. In accordance with expressed legislative intent that the *State Register* be self-supporting, the subscription rate has been established at \$130.00 per year, postpaid to points in the United States. Second class postage paid at St. Paul, Minnesota. Publication Number 326630. (ISSN 0146-7751) No refunds will be made in the event of subscription cancellation. Single issues may be obtained at \$3.00 per copy.

Subscribers who do not receive a copy of an issue should notify the *State Register* Circulation Manager immediately at (612) 296-0931. Copies of back issues may not be available more than two weeks after publication.

The *State Register* is the official publication of the State of Minnesota, containing executive orders of the governor, proposed and adopted rules of state agencies, and official notices to the public. Judicial notice shall be taken of material published in the *State Register*.

---

Albert H. Quic  
**Governor**

Carol Anderson Porter  
**Editor**

David Zunker  
**Information Officer**

James J. Hiniker, Jr.  
**Commissioner  
Department of Administration**

Paul Hoffman, Robin PanLener, Roy Schmidtke, Jean Walburg  
**Editorial Staff**

Stephen A. Ordahl  
**Director  
State Register and  
Public Documents Division**

Debbie Kobold  
**Circulation Manager**

Margaret Connelly  
**State Register Index Editor**

# CONTENTS

---

## MCAR AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS

Inclusive listing for Issues 27-29. . . . . 1312

## ADOPTED RULES

### Labor and Industry Department

#### Occupational Safety and Health Division

Access to Employee Exposure and Medical Records;  
Discrimination against Employees; and  
Recording and Reporting Occupational Injuries  
and Illnesses . . . . . 1313

### Public Service Department

Director of Public Service's Authority to Grant  
Variances with Regard to the Installation of  
Commercial Scales, Weighing Devices and  
Measuring Devices Not in Compliance with the  
the State Rules of 4 MCAR (PSC Rules 120-145) . . . 1313

### Revenue Department

#### Income Tax Division

Incorporation by Reference of the Internal Revenue  
Code; Repeal of Numerous Income Tax Rules . . . . 1314

### Transportation Department

Consolidated Order and Notice of Street and  
Highway Routes Designated and Permitted to Carry  
the Gross Weights Allowed under Minn. Stat.  
§ 169.832 [Order No. 66400] . . . . . 1314

## SUPREME COURT

### Decision Filed Friday, January 8, 1982

81-40/Sp. Robert K. Brown, Appellant, v. Dayton  
Hudson Corporation, *et al.*, City of Minneapolis,  
*et al.* Hennepin County . . . . . 1325  
51470 Winifred Haeussler, *et al.*, v. Richard Braun,  
Commissioner of Transportation, State of  
Minnesota, Appellant. Hennepin County . . . . . 1325

## OFFICIAL NOTICES

### Energy Agency

#### Data & Analysis Division

Recertification of the Sherburne County Generating  
Unit No. 3 as Proposed by Northern States Power  
Company, Southern Minnesota Municipal Power  
Company, Southern Minnesota Municipal Power  
Agency, and United Minnesota Municipal Power  
Agency, Joint Applicants [notice of availability of  
the Environmental Report] . . . . . 1326

### Health Department

Application by Oakdale Volunteer Fire Department  
for Expansion of Life Support Transportation  
Service Area . . . . . 1327

### Secretary of State's Office

Vacancies in Multi-member State Agencies . . . . . 1327

## NOTICE

### How to Follow State Agency Rulemaking Action in the *State Register*

State agencies must publish notice of their rulemaking action in the *State Register*. If an agency seeks outside opinion before promulgating new rules or rule amendments, it must publish a **NOTICE OF INTENT TO SOLICIT OUTSIDE OPINION**. Such notices are published in the **OFFICIAL NOTICES** section. Proposed rules and adopted rules are published in separate sections of the magazine.

#### The PROPOSED RULES section contains:

- Calendar of Public Hearings on Proposed Rules.
- Proposed new rules (including Notice of Hearing and/or Notice of Intent to Adopt Rules without A Hearing).
- Proposed amendments to rules already in existence in the Minnesota Code of Agency Rules (MCAR).
- Proposed temporary rules.

#### The ADOPTED RULES section contains:

- Notice of adoption of new rules and rule amendments (those which were adopted without change from the proposed version previously published).
- Adopted amendments to new rules or rule amendments (changes made since the proposed version was published).
- Notice of adoption of temporary rules.
- Adopted amendments to temporary rules (changes made since the proposed version was published).

All ADOPTED RULES and ADOPTED AMENDMENTS to EXISTING RULES published in the *State Register* will be published in the Minnesota Code of Agency Rules (MCAR). Proposed and adopted TEMPORARY RULES appear in the *State Register* but are not published in the MCAR due to the short-term nature of their legal effectiveness.

The *State Register* publishes partial and cumulative listings of rule action in the MCAR AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS list on the following schedule:

Issues 1-13, inclusive

Issues 14-25, inclusive

Issue 26, cumulative for 1-26

Issue 27-38, inclusive

Issue 39, cumulative for 1-39

Issues 40-51, inclusive

Issue 52, cumulative for 1-52

The listings are arranged in the same order as the table of contents of the MCAR.

# MCAR AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS

## TITLE 4 COMMERCE

### Part 1 Commerce Department

4 MCAR §§ 1.9255-1.9270 (proposed)..... 1229  
Ins 32, 34 (proposed repeal) ..... 1229

### Part 3 Public Utilities Commission

4 MCAR § 3.0146 (adopted).....1313

## TITLE 6 ENVIRONMENT

### Part 2 Energy Agency

6 MCAR §§ 2.0201-2.0214 (adopted)..... 1299

## TITLE 7 HEALTH

### Part 1 Health Department

MHD 326 (proposed) ..... 1297  
7 MCAR §§ 1.201-1.210 (repealed) ..... 1256  
7 MCAR §§ 1.661-1.665 (adopted)..... 1256

### Part 5 Board of Nursing

7 MCAR §§ 5.1030-5.1031, 5.1033, 5.1036,  
5.2030-5.2031, 5.2033, 5.2036 (adopted) ..... 1281  
7 MCAR §§ 5.1032, 5.2032 (repealed)..... 1281

## TITLE 8 LABOR

### Part 1 Labor and Industry Department

8 MCAR §§ 1.7230-1.7232, 1.7240-1.7247, 1.7292,  
1.7295, 1.7297, 1.7304 (adopted) .....1313

## TITLE 13 TAXATION

### Part 1 Revenue Department

13 MCAR § 1.6102 (adopted).....1314  
IncTax 2003 (2); 2003 (3); 2004; 2005 (1); 2005 (2); 2005 (3); 2005  
(4); 2006 (1); 2006 (2); 2006 (2) (a); 2006 (3); 2006 (4); 2006 (5);  
2006 (8); 2007 (5)-1; 2007 (5)-2; 2007 (5)-3; 2007 (5)-4; 2007 (5)-5;  
2007 (5)-6; 2007 (5)-7; 2007 (5)-8; 2007 (5)-9; 2007.2; 2007.6; 2008  
(3)-1; 2008 (3)-2; 2008 (3)-3; 2008 (3)-4; 2008 (3)-5; 2008 (4); 2008  
(5); 2008 (6); 2008 (11); 2008 (16); 2008 (20)-1; 2008 (20)-2; 2008

(20)-3; 2008 (20)-4; 2009 (3)-2; 2009 (3)-3; 2009 (5)-3; 2009 (5)-6;  
2009 (12)-1; 2009 (12)-2; 2009 (12)-3; 2009 (12)-4; 2009 (14); 2009  
(15); 2009 (18)-1; 2009 (18)-2; 2009 (18)-3; 2009 (18)-4; 2009 (19);  
2009 (21)-1; 2009 (21)-2; 2009 (21)-3; 2009 (21)-4; 2009 (21)-5;  
2009 (21)-6; 2009.5 (7)-6; 2010 (8); 2012 (1); 2012 (3); 2013 (4);  
2013.1 (2)-1; 2013.1 (2)-2; 2013.1 (2)-3; 2013.1 (2)-4; 2013.1 (3);  
2013.1 (4); 2013.1 (5); 2013.1 (6)-1; 2013.1 (6)-2; 2013.1 (6)-3;  
2013.1 (7); 2013.2 (1); 2013.2 (2)-1; 2013.2 (2)-2; 2013.2 (2)-3;  
2013.2 (2)-4; 2013.2 (2)-5; 2013.2 (2)-10; 2013.2 (2)-11; 2013.2  
(2)-12; 2013.3 (2); 2013.3 (3)-1; 2013.3 (3)-2; 2013.3 (3)-3; 2013.3  
(3)-4; 2013.4 (1); 2013.4 (2)-1; 2013.4 (2)-2; 2013.4 (2)-3; 2013.4  
(2)-4; 2013.4 (2)-5; 2013.4 (2)-6; 2013.4 (2)-7; 2013.4 (3)-1; 2013.4  
(3)-2; 2013.4 (3)-3; 2013.4 (3)-4; 2013.4 (3)-5; 2013.4 (4)-1; 2013.4  
(4)-2; 2013.5 (1); 2013.5 (2)-1; 2013.5 (2)-2; 2013.5 (2)-3; 2013.5  
(2)-4; 2013.5 (2)-5; 2013.5 (3)-1; 2013.5 (3)-2; 2013.5 (3)-3; 2013.5  
(3)-4; 2013.5 (3)-5; 2013.5 (4)-1; 2013.5 (4)-2; 2013.5 (4)-3; 2013.6  
(1)-1; 2013.6 (1)-2; 2013.6 (1)-3; 2013.6 (2); 2013.6 (3)-1; 2013.6  
(3)-2; 2013.6 (3)-3; 2013.6 (3)-4; 2013.6 (3)-5; 2013.6 (4)-1; 2013.6  
(4)-2; 2013.6 (4)-3; 2013.6 (4)-4; 2013.6 (5)-1; 2013.6 (5)-2; 2013.6  
(6)-1; 2013.6 (6)-2; 2013.6 (6)-3; 2013.6 (6)-4; 2013.6 (7); 2013.6  
(8)-1; 2013.6 (9)-1; 2013.6 (9)-2; 2013.6 (9)-3; 2013.7 (1)-1; 2013.7  
(1)-2; 2013.7 (2); 2013.7 (3)-1; 2013.7 (3)-2; 2014 (7); 2016 (6);  
2016 (7)-1; 2016 (7)-2; 2016 (7)-3; 2016 (7)-4; 2016 (12); 2016  
(13)-1; 2017 (5); 2018 (2); 2021 (1); 2022; 2023 (2)-1; 2023 (2)-2;  
2023 (2)-3; 2023 (5)-1; 2023 (5)-2; 2023 (5)-3; 2023 (5)-4; 2023  
(5)-5; 2023 (5)-6; 2023 (5)-7; 2023 (5)-8; 2023 (6)-1; 2023 (6)-2;  
2023 (6)-3; 2023 (6)-4; 2023 (6)-5; 2023 (7)-1; 2023 (7)-2; 2023  
(7)-3; 2023 (7)-4; 2023 (7)-5; 2023 (7)-6; 2023 (7)-7; 2023 (7)-8;  
2023 (8)-1; 2023 (8)-2; 2023 (8)-3; 2023 (8)-4; 2023 (9)-1; 2023  
(9)-2; 2023 (9)-3; 2023 (9)-4; 2023 (9)-5; 2023 (9)-6; 2023 (9)-7;  
2023 (9)-8; 2023 (9)-9; 2023 (10)-1; 2023 (10)-2; 2023 (10)-3; 2023  
(10)-4; 2023 (10)-5; 2023 (10)-6; 2023 (10)-7; 2023 (10)-8; 2023  
(11)-1; 2023 (11)-2; 2023 (11)-3; 2023 (11)-4; 2023 (11)-5; 2023

(11)-6; 2023 (11)-7; 2023 (11)-8; 2023 (12)-1; 2023 (12)-2; 2023 (12)-3; 2023 (13); 2023 (14)-1; 2023 (14)-2; 2023 (14)-3; 2023 (14)-4; 2023 (14)-5; 2024; 2025 (1)-1; 2025 (1)-2; 2025 (1)-3; 2025 (1)-4; 2025 (2)-1; 2025 (2)-2; 2025 (2)-3; 2025 (3)-1; 2025 (3)-2; 2025 (3)-3; 2025 (3)-4; 2025 (4)-1; 2025 (4)-2; 2025 (4)-3; 2025 (4)-4; 2025 (4)-5; 2025 (5); 2027-1; 2027-2; 2028 (1)-1; 2028 (1)-2; 2028 (2)-1; 2028 (2)-2; 2028 (2)-3; 2028 (2)-4; 2031 (28); 2036.1 (1);

2037 (1); 2037 (2); 2038 (2); 2040 (4); 2042 (5); 2044; 2045 (3); 2050 (2); 2050 (4); 2053 (3); 2053 (4); 2061; 2065 (1); 2065 (6); 2065 (7); 2092 (1)-1; 2092 (1)-5; 2092 (7)-3; 2092 (11); 2093.1-1; 2093.1-2; 2093.1-4; 2093.2-1; 2093.2-2; 2093.2-3; 2093.2-5; 2093.3-3; 2093.4-4; 2093.4-5; 2093.4-6; 2097.1 (1); 2097.1 (2); 2097.1 (3); 2097.2 (1); 2097.2 (2); 2097.2 (3); 2097.2 (5); and 2097.2 (6) (repealed) . . . . . 1314

**ADOPTED RULES**

The adoption of a rule becomes effective after the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 15.0412, subd. 4, have been met and five working days after the rule is published in the *State Register*, unless a later date is required by statutes or specified in the rule.

If an adopted rule is identical to its proposed form as previously published, a notice of adoption and a citation to its previous *State Register* publication will be printed.

If an adopted rule differs from its proposed form, language which has been deleted will be printed with strike outs and new language will be underlined, and the rule's previous *State Register* publication will be cited.

A temporary rule becomes effective upon the approval of the Attorney General as specified in Minn. Stat. § 15.0412, subd. 5. Notice of his decision will be published as soon as practicable, and the adopted temporary rule will be published in the manner provided for adopted rules under subd. 4.

**Department of Labor and Industry  
Occupational Safety and Health Division**

**Adoption of Rules Governing Access to Employee Exposure and Medical Records;  
Discrimination against Employees; and Recording and Reporting Occupational  
Injuries and Illnesses**

The rules as proposed and published at *State Register*, Volume 6, Number 11, pp. 446-450, September 14, 1981 (6 S.R. 446) are now adopted with the following modification:

**Rules as Adopted**

**Chapter Nineteen: Discrimination Against Employees**

8 MCAR § 1.7244 Unprotected activities.

A. Permitted discipline. That certain of an employee's activities are protected by the act does not protect an employee from discipline or discharge for other legitimate reasons ~~including tardiness, unauthorized absences or poor workmanship.~~

**Minnesota Department of Public Service**

**Adopted Rule Governing the Director of Public Service's Authority to Grant Variances  
with Regard to the Installation of Commercial Scales, Weighing Devices and  
Measuring Devices Not in Compliance with the Stated Rules of 4 MCAR (PSC Rules  
120-145)**

The rule proposed and published at *State Register*, Volume 6, Number 19, pages 883-884, November 9, 1981 (Cite 6 S.R. 883) is now adopted as proposed.

**KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

## ADOPTED RULES

### Department of Revenue Income Tax Division

#### Adopted Rule Concerning Incorporation by Reference of the Internal Revenue Code (13 MCAR § 1.6102); Repealing Numerous Income Tax Rules

The rule proposed and published at *State Register*, Volume 6, Number 16, Pages 686-687, October 19, 1981 (6 S.R. 686) are now adopted with the following modifications:

#### Rules as Adopted

**Repealer.** Income tax rules 2003 (2); 2003 (3); 2004; 2005 (1); 2005 (2); 2005 (3); 2005 (4); 2006 (1); 2006 (2); ~~2006 (2) (a)~~ 2006 (2a); [The remainder of the repealer is adopted as proposed except that the "2;" which appeared in the proposed rule following 2013.6 (4)-2; was a printer's error and is not part of the repealer as adopted.]

### Department of Transportation

#### Consolidated Order and Notice of Street and Highway Routes Designated and Permitted to Carry the Gross Weights Allowed under Minn. Stat. § 169.832

#### Order No. 66400

Whereas, the Commissioner of Transportation by Order No. 65851, dated June 29, 1981, which order has been amended by Orders Nos. 65929, 65932, 65963, 66058, 66221, and 66305, designates and permits certain street and highway routes, or segments of those routes, to carry the gross weights allowed under Minnesota Statutes § 169.832, and

Whereas, the commissioner has determined that the record of said designation has become cumbersome to maintain, and that the existing designations should be consolidated with needed amendments into one order and document,

The commissioner, as of the date of this Consolidated Order, hereby vacates, rescinds and sets aside Order No. 65851, as amended by Orders Nos. 65929, 65932, 65963, 66058, 66221, and 66305.

The Commissioner of Transportation as of this date orders and gives notice, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes § 169.832 (1981 Supp.), that the following street and highway routes, or segments of those routes, are designated and permitted to carry the gross weights allowed under Minnesota Statutes § 169.832. Those routes or their segments are as follows:

Explanatory Note: Both the 12 month and seasonal routes are listed together. The 12 month routes are all in capital letters. The seasonal routes are in small letters. The routes are listed in numerical order and read geographically from west to east and from south to north.

#### Trunk Highways

- T.H. 1—From west state border to Jct. T.H. 32.  
From Jct. T.H. 32 to Jct. T.H. 219  
(Effective August 1 each year).
- T.H. 2—In its entirety from west state border to Jct. T.H. 61 (I-35).  
FROM JCT. I-35 IN DULUTH TO ARROWHEAD BRIDGE.
- T.H. 3—From Jct. T.H. 21 to Jct. T.H. 55.  
FROM JCT. T.H. 110 TO T.H. 5.
- T.H. 4—From Jct. T.H. 14 north to Jct. T.H. 68.
- T.H. 5—From west Jct. T.H. 19 to T.H. 212.  
From Jct. T.H. 41 to I-494.  
FROM JCT. I-494 TO MISSISSIPPI RIVER.  
From Mississippi River to Grand Avenue (Ramsey Street).  
(EAST 7TH STREET) FROM T.H. 52 (ROBERT STREET) EAST TO EAST MINNEHAHA AVENUE.
- T.H. 6—From Jct. T.H. 18 to east Jct. T.H. 210.
- T.H. 7—From Jct. T.H. 12 east to Jct. T.H. 15.  
FROM T.H. 15 TO JCT. I-494.  
From Jct. I-494 to Jct. T.H. 100.
- T.H. 8—From Jct. I-35 to east state line (St. Croix River).

- T.H. 9—From Jct. T.H. 29 to Jct. T.H. 59.  
From Jct. T.H. 200 to Jct. T.H.2  
(Effective August 1 each year).  
From Jct. T.H. 10 to Jct. C.S.A.H. 39  
at Borup (Effective June 15, each year).  
From Clay C.S.A.H. 52 in Barnesville to Jct. I-94 (800 ft.)
- T.H. 10—FROM WEST STATE LINE TO BECKER COUNTY C.S.A.H. 10 (FRAZEE).  
From C.S.A.H. 10 Becker County (Frazee) to Jct. T.H. 47 (Anoka).  
FROM JCT. T.H. 47 TO JCT. I-694.
- T.H. 11—From Jct. T.H. 32 to Baudette.
- T.H. 12—From west state line to north Jct. T.H. 7 (Ortonville).  
From Jct. T.H. 59 to Jct. T.H. 100.  
FROM T.H. 280 TO WISCONSIN.
- T.H. 13—From Jct. I-90 (Albert Lea) to Jct. T.H. 60.  
From Jct. T.H. 282 northeast to Jct. T.H. 101.  
FROM JCT. T.H. 101 TO I-35W.
- T.H. 14—From Jct. T.H. 75 to 2 miles west of I-35 (24th Avenue N.W.).  
FROM 24TH AVENUE NORTHWEST TO I-35 IN OWÁTONNA.  
From Jct. I-35 to Jct. T.H. 218 (Havana).  
From Jct. T.H. 56 to Jct. T.H. 57 (Kasson).  
FROM JCT. T.H. 57 (KASSON) TO EAST ROCHESTER CITY LIMITS.  
From Jct. T.H. 74 (St. Charles) to Jct. T.H. 61.
- T.H. 15—From Fairmont to Jct. T.H. 257.  
From Jct. T.H. 14 to Jct. T.H. 19.
- T.H. 16—From Jct. I-90 to east Jct. T.H. 52.  
From Jct. T.H. 44 to Jct. T.H. 61.
- T.H. 18—From Jct. T.H. 210 to north Jct. T.H. 169.  
From south Jct. T.H. 47 to north Jct. T.H. 47.  
From Finlayson to east Jct. T.H. 23.
- T.H. 19—From South Dakota State Line to Jct. T.H. 75.  
From Lyon Co. Rd. 7 to Jct. T.H. 22.
- T.H. 21—From south Jct. T.H. 13 to Jct. 169.
- T.H. 22—From Jct. T.H. 109 to Jct. T.H. 14.  
From Jct. T.H. 212 to Jct. T.H. 55.
- T.H. 23—From Jct. T.H. 269 to T.H. 55.  
FROM T.H. 55 IN PAYNESVILLE TO I-94.  
From Jct. I-94 to south Jct. I-35.  
From north Jct. I-35 to Askov.
- T.H. 24—From Jct. I-94 to Jct. T.H. 10.
- T.H. 25—From south Jct. T.H. 5 to Norwood.  
FROM I-94 TO SHERBURNE COUNTY C.S.A.H. 11.  
From Sherburne C.S.A.H. 11 to north Jct. T.H. 10.  
From Jct. T.H. 18 to Merrifield.
- T.H. 27—From Jct. T.H. 75 to Jct. T.H. 9.  
From Jct. T.H. 29 to Jct. T.H. 127.  
From south Jct. T.H. 71 to Jct. T.H. 25.

**KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

## ADOPTED RULES

---

---

- From north Jct. T.H. 47 to Jct. T.H. 65.  
From I-35 to Jct. T.H. 73 (Moose Lake).
- T.H. 28—From west state line to south Jct. T.H. 9.  
From Morris to Glenwood.  
FROM 5TH STREET NORTHWEST IN GLENWOOD TO JCT. I-94.
- T.H. 29—From Jct. T.H. 212 to Jct. T.H. 7.  
FROM JCT. I-94 TO ITS NORTH JCT. WITH T.H. 27 (ALEXANDRIA).
- T.H. 30—From Jct. T.H. 75 to north Jct. T.H. 59.  
From Jct. T.H. 4 to south Jct. T.H. 15.  
From Ellendale to Jct. I-35.
- T.H. 32—From Jct. T.H. 59 to Jct. T.H. 11.  
From Jct. T.H. 102 in Fertile to Ullen (Temporary).  
In St. Hillaire from the Elevator entrance to Pennington County C.S.A.H. 3 (Temporary).
- T.H. 33—From Jct. I-35 to Jct. T.H. 53.
- T.H. 34—From Osage to Jct. T.H. 371.
- I-35 —CONTINUOUS FROM IOWA BORDER TO 1.0 MILE NORTH OF JCT. WITH I-535 IN DULUTH.  
INCLUDES I-35W and I-35E FROM DOWNTOWN ST. PAUL TO VICINITY OF FOREST LAKE.
- T.H. 36—FROM JCT. I-35W TO SOUTH JCT. T.H. 95 NEAR STILLWATER.  
From south Jct. T.H. 95 to Water St. in Stillwater.  
From Water Street to the midpoint of St. Croix River Bridge in Stillwater.
- T.H. 37—From Jct. T.H. 53 to Jct. T.H. 135.
- T.H. 40—From west state line to Jct. T.H. 75.
- T.H. 41—From Jct. T.H. 169 to Jct. T.H. 212.  
From Jct. T.H. 5 to Jct. T.H. 7.
- T.H. 44—From west Jct. T.H. 52 to Jct. T.H. 16.
- T.H. 45—From Jct. T.H. 210 (Carlton) to Jct. T.H. 33 (Cloquet).
- T.H. 47—FROM NORTH CITY LIMITS OF MINNEAPOLIS TO JCT. T.H. 10 IN ANOKA.  
From south Jct. T.H. 27 to north Jct. T.H. 18.
- T.H. 49—In St. Paul from Jct. T.H. 36 south to Schroeder Milk Co. (Temporary).
- T.H. 51—FROM I-94 TO I-694.  
FROM WEST 7TH STREET IN ST. PAUL TO I-94 (SNELLING AVENUE FROM I-94 TO MONTREAL AVENUE, THEN MONTREAL AVENUE FROM SNELLING AVENUE TO WEST 7TH STREET).
- T.H. 52—From south state line to I-90.  
FROM JCT. I-90 TO OLMSTED COUNTY ROAD 14, 5 MILES NORTH OF WEST JCT. T.H. 14 IN ROCHESTER.  
From Olmsted County Road 14 to South Jct. T.H. 55.  
FROM SOUTH JCT. T.H. 55 TO NORTH JCT. T.H. 55.  
From north Jct. T.H. 55 to Plato Blvd.  
FROM PLATO BLVD TO WEST CITY LIMITS OF ST. PAUL.  
FROM JCT. T.H. 100 TO JCT. I-94.
- T.H. 53—From Jct. I-35 (Duluth) to south Jct. T.H. 169 (Virginia).
- T.H. 55—From Jct. T.H. 29 to Brooten.  
FROM 6.5 MILES WEST OF JCT. T.H. 71 (BROOTEN) TO JCT. T.H. 23.  
From Jct. T.H. 23 to Jct. T.H. 22.  
FROM JCT. T.H. 22 (EDEN VALLEY) TO OAK LAKE AVENUE.  
FROM EAST 24TH STREET IN MINNEAPOLIS TO JCT. T.H. 61.
- T.H. 56—From Adams to Jct. T.H. 30.  
From Randolph to south Jct. T.H. 55.  
FROM SOUTH JCT. T.H. 55 TO NORTH JCT. T.H. 55.



- From north Jct. T.H. 55 to Jct. T.H. 3.  
From Kenyon to Randolph (Temporary).
- T.H. 57—From Jct. T.H. 14 to Jct. T.H. 60.
- T.H. 58—(Plum St. in Red Wing) from T.H. 63 to T.H. 61.
- T.H. 59—From south Jct. T.H. 30 to Jct. T.H. 23.  
From Worthington to Jct. T.H. 30 at Slayton.  
From Jct. T.H. 67 to Jct. T.H. 12.  
From West Jct. T.H. 68 in Marshall north to Erie Road (6500 feet).  
From south Jct. T.H. 9 to north Jct. T.H. 28.  
From Erskine to Thief River Falls (Temporary).  
**FROM SOUTH JCT. I-94 TO SHERIDAN AVENUE IN FERGUS FALLS.**  
In Fergus Falls from Sheridan Avenue to north Jct. T.H. 210.  
**FROM NORTH JCT. I-94 TO JCT. T.H. 10.**  
From Jct. T.H. 10 to Jct. T.H. 2.  
From Jct. T.H. 1 to north state line.
- T.H. 60—From south state line to east Jct. T.H. 14.  
From Jct. T.H. 57 to north Jct. T.H. 52.
- T.H. 61—From Jct. T.H. 16 to I-90.  
**FROM NORTH JCT. I-90 TO 1 MILE NORTH OF T.H. 60 AT WABASHA.**  
From 150' east of Potter St. to Dakota St. in Red Wing.  
**FROM HASTINGS TO JCT. I-94.**  
**FROM JCT. T.H. 5 (EAST 7TH STREET) TO SOUTH JCT. T.H. 96.**  
From Jct. T.H. 63 in Lake City to Jct. T.H. 60 in Wabasha (Temporary).  
From south Jct. T.H. 96 to Jct. T.H. 8.  
**FROM END OF I-35 (DULUTH) TO LAKE COUNTY ROAD 2 (TWO HARBORS).**
- T.H. 63—**FROM JCT. WITH I-90 TO JCT. T.H. 52.**  
From Jct. T.H. 14 in Rochester to Jct. T.H. 61 in Wabasha (Temporary).  
From T.H. 58 in Red Wing to Wisconsin State Line.  
From Olmstead C.S.A.H. 6 to Jct. I-90.
- T.H. 65—**FROM SOUTH JCT. I-35 (SOUTH OF ALBERT LEA) TO 2.3 MILES NORTH.**  
From 2.3 miles north of south Jct. I-35 to north Jct. I-35.  
From Jct. I-694 to south Jct. T.H. 27.  
From Pengilly to north Jct. T.H. 169.
- T.H. 67—From Echo to Jct. T.H. 68.  
From Jct. T.H. 75 to Jct. T.H. 59 in Clarkfield.
- T.H. 68—From Canby to Milroy.  
From Wabasso to Jct. T.H. 71.  
From Jct. T.H. 67 to north Jct. T.H. 15.
- T.H. 71—From Jackson to Jct. I-94.  
**FROM JCT. I-94 NORTH TO NORTH 4TH STREET IN SAUK CENTRE.**  
From Jct. 4th Street North in Sauk Centre to Browerville.  
From Jct. T.H. 10 to Jct. T.H. 34.  
From Jct. T.H. 2 to Jct. T.H. 72 in Blackduck.
- T.H. 73—From Jct. I-35 to Jct. T.H. 27 (Moose Lake).  
From south Jct. T.H. 169 to north Jct. T.H. 169 (Hibbing).
- T.H. 74—**FROM JCT. I-90 NORTH TO JCT. T.H. 14 IN ST. CHARLES.**
- T.H. 75—From south state line to Canadian border.

|  |
|--|
| <p><b>KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION</b> — <u>Underlining</u> indicates additions to existing rule language. <del>Strike outs</del> indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." <b>ADOPTED RULES SECTION</b> — <u>Underlining</u> indicates additions to proposed rule language. <del>Strike outs</del> indicate deletions from proposed rule language.</p> |
|--|

## ADOPTED RULES

---

---

- T.H. 79—From Elbow Lake to I-94.
- T.H. 87—From south Jct. T.H. 71 to north Jct. T.H. 71.  
From Becker County C.S.A.H. 30 to C.S.A.H. 10 in City of Frazee.
- T.H. 89—From Jct. T.H. 2 to south Jct. T.H. 1.
- I-90 —FROM WEST BORDER TO EAST BORDER.
- T.H. 91—From Iowa State Line to Ellsworth.
- T.H. 92—From Jct. T.H. 222 to Jct. T.H. 2.  
(Effective August 1 each year).
- I-94 —CONTINUOUS FROM NORTH DAKOTA BORDER TO I-694 EAST OF ST. PAUL (INCLUDES YET TO BE CONSTRUCTED SEGMENT AT LYNDALE AVENUE LOCATION IN MINNEAPOLIS).
- T.H. 95—From Jct. T.H. 169 to Jct. CSAH 30 in North Branch (Old T.H. 61).  
From Laurel St. to north Jct. T.H. 36 in Stillwater.  
FROM SOUTH JCT. T.H. 36 TO JCT. T.H. 12.
- State —From Jct. T.H. 95 to Washington County Rd. 28.  
Prison  
Entrance
- T.H. 96—From Jct. I-35W to Jct. T.H. 61.
- T.H. 100—FROM I-494 TO I-94.
- T.H. 101—FROM JCT. T.H. 13 TO JCT. T.H. 169 IN SHAKOPEE.  
From south Jct. T.H. 169 to Jct. T.H. 212 and 169.  
From Jct. T.H. 152 to Jct. CSAH 150 (Rogers).  
FROM JCT. CSAH 150 (ROGERS) TO JCT. T.H. 169 (ELK RIVER).
- T.H. 109—From Jct. T.H. 22 to Jct. I-90.
- T.H. 110—FROM JCT. T.H. 55 TO T.H. 56.
- T.H. 112—From T.H. 93 to Jct. CSAH 36 (2nd St.) in LeSueur—(Temporary Route).
- T.H. 127—From Jct. I-94 to Jct. T.H. 27.
- T.H. 135—From Jct. T.H. 53 to Aurora.
- T.H. 149—From Jct. T.H. 3 to North Jct. T.H. 55.
- T.H. 152—FROM 49th AVE. N. TO I-94.  
FROM JCT. T.H. 169 (OSSEO) TO JCT. T.H. 101 (DAYTON).
- T.H. 169—From south state line to Jct. T.H. 21 (Jordan).  
FROM JCT. T.H. 21 (JORDAN) TO SOUTH JCT. T.H. 101 (SHAKOPEE).  
From south Jct. T.H. 101 to Jct. I-494.  
FROM JCT. I-494 TO NORTH JCT. T.H. 152 (OSSEO).  
From north Jct. T.H. 152 to Jct. T.H. 23.  
From south Jct. T.H. 27 to west Jct. T.H. 210.  
From Jct. T.H. 200 to south Jct. T.H. 53.
- T.H. 175—From west state line to Jct. T.H. 59.
- T.H. 200—From west state line to Jct. T.H. 9.  
From north Jct. T.H. 371 to south Jct. T.H. 371.  
From Jct. T.H. 32 north of Twin Valley to Jct. T.H. 59 at Mahnommen.
- T.H. 201—From Jct. T.H. 10 to Jct. T.H. 169 (Elk River).
- T.H. 210—FROM JCT. I-94 EAST TO ST. ANDREWS STREET SOUTH IN FERGUS FALLS.  
In Fergus Falls from St. Andrews Street South to Sheridan Avenue.  
From west Jct. T.H. 10 to I-35.  
From North Dakota Border at Breckenridge to Jct. I-94 at Fergus Falls.
- T.H. 212—From west state line to Carver County Road 10 (Walnut Street—Chaska).  
From Jct. T.H. 101 to Jct. I-494.

- T.H. 218—From south state line to 1¼ miles south of Jct. I-90.  
 FROM 1¼ MILES SOUTH OF I-90 TO EAST JCT. I-90.  
 FROM WEST JCT. I-90 TO 2 MILES NORTH.  
 From 2.0 miles north of Jct. I-90 to Jct. T.H. 14.
- T.H. 219—From Jct. T.H. 1 to Goodridge (Effective August 1 each year).
- T.H. 222—From Jct. T.H. 92 to Oklee (Effective August 1 each year).
- T.H. 226—From Jct. T.H. 34 into Dorset.
- T.H. 231—From west state line to I-94 (Moorhead).
- T.H. 242—(Main Street) from T.H. 10 to 9th Avenue (in Anoka).
- T.H. 261—From Lester Prairie to Winsted.
- T.H. 263—From I-90 to Jct. C.S.A.H. 26 (Old T.H. 16).
- T.H. 267—From Iona to Jct. T.H. 30 (Temporary).
- T.H. 268—From Jct. T.H. 75 into Edgerton.
- T.H. 270—From Hills to Jct. T.H. 75.
- T.H. 273—From Jct. T.H. 19 to Belview.
- T.H. 274—From Wood Lake to Jct. T.H. 23.
- T.H. 275—From Boyd to Jct. T.H. 212.
- T.H. 277—From Jct. T.H. 7 to Gluek.
- T.H. 280—FROM JCT. I-94 TO JCT. T.H. 36.
- T.H. 282—From Jct. T.H. 169 to Jct. T.H. 13.
- T.H. 322—From Jct. T.H. 371 to Jct. T.H. 18.
- T.H. 324—FROM I-35 TO ITS JCT. WITH T.H. 361 IN PINE CITY.
- T.H. 329—From T.H. 59 for ¼ mile east into University of Morris experimental station.
- T.H. 361—From I-35 to Jct. T.H. 324 (Pine City).
- T.H. 371—From Jct. T.H. 10 to Jct. T.H. 2.
- I-494 —FROM JCT. I-94 (FISH LAKE) TO EAST JCT. T.H. 5 AT TWIN CITY INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT.  
 FROM T.H. 56 TO JCT. I-94 EAST OF ST. PAUL.
- I-535 —IN DULUTH FROM I-35 TO WISCONSON.
- I-694 —FROM WEST JCT. I-94 (BROOKLYN CENTER) TO EAST JCT. I-94 EAST OF ST. PAUL.

City Streets

- Albert Lea —MARGARETHA AVENUE FROM T.H. 65 SOUTH TO 13TH STREET AND 13TH STREET EAST TO ITS TERMINI.
- Anoka —(MSAS) 9th Avenue from T.H. 242 to Hoffman Engineering.  
 (MSAS) Tyler Street from 7th Avenue to Federal Cartridge.
- Blaine —85TH AVENUE FROM I-35W TO 3601 (TRUCK TERMINAL IN THE CITY OF BLAINE).
- Brainerd —North and South 4th Street from Washington Street to Laurel Street.  
 Laurel Street from South 4th Street to East River Road.
- Burnsville —122nd Street from Jct. I-35W to Dupont Avenue.  
 Dupont Avenue from 122nd Street to south Jct. Lady Bird Lane.

**KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

## ADOPTED RULES

---

---

- Cyrus —From 2 blocks south of Jct. T.H. 28 and CSAH 3 on Dahl Street to T.H. 28.
- Detroit Lakes—RANDOLPH ROAD FROM GABOR TERMINAL TO ROOSEVELT AVENUE; THEN ROOSEVELT AVENUE SOUTH TO T.H. 10.
- Faribault —2nd Avenue N.W. from Trunk Highway 60 north to Trunk Highway 3 (20th Street N.W.).
- Fergus Falls —DOUGLAS AVENUE FROM T.H. 59 TO T.H. 210.  
SHERIDAN AVENUE FROM T.H. 59 AND 210 NORTH, TO WASHINGTON AVENUE, WEST ON WASHINGTON AVENUE ONE BLOCK TO SHERMAN STREET, THEN SOUTH ONE BLOCK ON SHERMAN STREET TO JUNIUS AVENUE.  
FROM T.H. 210 SOUTH ON ST. ANDREWS STREET TO WEST LINCOLN AVENUE, WEST ON WEST LINCOLN AVENUE TO SEWAGE PLANT ROAD, THEN SOUTH ON SEWAGE PLANT ROAD TO CENTRAL BY-PRODUCTS PLANT.
- Glenwood —JUNCTION OF T.H. 28 AND MINNESOTA AVENUE TO NORTH LAKESHORE DRIVE, THEN NORTH LAKESHORE DRIVE TO THE WEST CORPORATE LIMITS OF GLENWOOD.
- Hutchinson —Arch Street between Michigan Street and the Farmers Elevator (Temporary).  
Michigan Street Between T.H. 7 and Arch Street (Temporary).
- Inver Grove Heights —Maltby Road From Jct. T.H. 52 east 1700 feet.  
117th Street from T.H. 52 West to the entrance of the Pine Bend Landfill.
- Mankato —3rd Avenue from Brooks Street to Jct. T.H. 14.  
Minneopa Road from Woodland Avenue to Blue Earth River.
- \*Minneapolis —ARTHUR STREET N.E. FROM 18TH AVENUE N.E. TO NEW BRIGHTON BOULEVARD (T.H. 88).  
STINSON BOULEVARD FROM 18TH AVENUE N.E. TO BROADWAY STREET N.E.  
I-35W NORTH FRONTAGE ROAD FROM STINSON BOULEVARD TO NEW BRIGHTON BOULEVARD (T.H. 88).  
I-35W SOUTH FRONTAGE ROAD FROM STINSON BOULEVARD TO NEW BRIGHTON BOULEVARD (T.H. 88).  
BROADWAY STREET N.E. FROM ARTHUR STREET N.E. TO JCT. T.H. 280.  
ARTHUR STREET N.E. FROM SUMMER STREET N.E. TO BROADWAY STREET N.E.  
TAFT STREET N.E. FROM KENNEDY STREET N.E. TO BROADWAY STREET N.E.  
INDUSTRIAL BOULEVARD N.E. FROM BROADWAY STREET N.E. TO I-35W.  
NEW BRIGHTON BOULEVARD FROM I-35W NORTH FRONTAGE ROAD TO SOUTH FRONTAGE ROAD.  
T.H. 55 (HIAWATHA AVENUE) FROM EAST 24TH STREET TO MINNEAPOLIS SOUTH CITY LIMITS.  
CEDAR HIGHWAY FROM EAST 24TH STREET TO MINNEHAHA AVENUE.  
CEDAR AVENUE FROM I-94 EXIT RAMP TO MINNEHAHA AVENUE.  
MINNEHAHA AVENUE FROM I-94 TO EAST 26TH STREET.  
EAST 26TH STREET FROM MINNEHAHA AVENUE TO 26TH AVENUE SOUTH.  
26TH AVENUE SOUTH FROM EAST 26TH STREET TO EAST 27TH STREET.  
EAST 24TH STREET FROM MINNEHAHA AVENUE TO CEDAR AVENUE.  
WASHINGTON AVENUE SOUTH FROM 42ND AVENUE SOUTH TO 10TH AVENUE NORTH, AND FROM 10TH AVENUE SOUTH TO 14TH AVENUE SOUTH (I-35W).  
OAK LAKE AVENUE FROM OLSON HIGHWAY TO 10TH AVENUE NORTH.  
10TH AVENUE NORTH FROM OAK LAKE AVENUE TO WASHINGTON AVENUE NORTH.

\*Denotes a ¼ mile deviation from the following listed routes as long as posted bridges are not utilized.

10TH AVENUE SOUTH FROM WASHINGTON AVENUE NORTHERLY TO END.  
DOWLING AVENUE NORTH FROM WASHINGTON AVENUE TO END.  
LYNDALE AVENUE NORTH FROM 42ND AVENUE NORTH TO NORTH CITY LIMITS.  
49TH AVENUE NORTH FROM JAMES AVENUE NORTH TO WEST CITY LIMITS.  
MARSHALL STREET N.E. FROM BROADWAY STREET N.E. TO EAST RIVER ROAD.  
EAST RIVER ROAD FROM MARSHALL STREET N.E. TO NORTH CITY LIMITS.  
UNIVERSITY AVENUE N.E. FROM LOWRY STREET N.E. TO NORTH CITY LIMITS.  
LOWRY STREET N.E. FROM MARSHALL STREET N.E. TO 6TH STREET N.E.  
ELM STREET S.E. FROM KASOTA AVENUE TO 17TH AVENUE S.E.  
17TH AVENUE S.E. FROM ELM STREET TO ROLLINS AVENUE S.E.  
ROLLINS AVENUE S.E. FROM 17TH AVENUE TO 15TH AVENUE S.E.  
UNIVERSITY AVENUE S.E. FROM 25TH AVENUE S.E. TO EAST CITY LIMITS.

- Moorhead —1ST AVENUE NORTH FROM 8TH STREET NORTH TO T.H. 10.
- Morris —Pacific Avenue From T.H. 59 to Park Avenue.
- New Ulm —Front Street from 8th Street North to Center Street, then Center Street from Front Street to Valley Street, then South Valley Street from Center Street to First Street South.
- Owatonna —Park Drive from County Road 75 (24th Avenue N.W.) to Railroad Tracks.
- Pine City —SEVENTH STREET FROM HILLSIDE AVENUE TO 8TH AVENUE WEST, FROM 4TH AVENUE WEST TO 3RD AVENUE WEST, FROM 2ND AVENUE WEST TO RIVER.  
FOURTH STREET FROM HILLSIDE AVENUE TO 8TH AVENUE EAST, 5TH AVENUE EAST TO 3RD AVENUE EAST.  
THIRD STREET FROM 3RD AVENUE EAST TO RIVER.  
SECOND STREET FROM 3RD AVENUE EAST TO 2ND AVENUE EAST.  
FIRST AVENUE EAST FROM CSAH 61 TO RAILROAD TRACKS.  
SECOND AVENUE WEST FROM 7TH STREET TO CSAH 61.  
SECOND AVENUE EAST FROM CSAH 61 TO SECOND STREET.  
THIRD AVENUE WEST FROM 7TH STREET TO CSAH 61.  
THIRD AVENUE EAST FROM CSAH 61 TO 2ND STREET.  
FOURTH AVENUE WEST FROM 7TH STREET TO CSAH 61.  
EIGHTH AVENUE WEST FROM 7TH STREET TO CSAH 61.  
EIGHTH AVENUE EAST FROM CSAH 61 TO 4TH STREET.  
HILLSIDE AVENUE FROM CSAH 61 TO FOURTH STREET.
- Red Wing —Potter Street from T.H. 61 north to elevator.  
Plum Street from T.H. 61 to ½ block north.  
Broad Street from T.H. 61 to Levee Road.  
Levee Road from Broad Street to elevator entrance.  
Dakota Street from T.H. 61 to elevator entrance.
- Rose Creek —3rd Street.

**KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

## ADOPTED RULES

---

---

- Rosemount —Pine Bend Trail from Jct. T.H. 55 to 1.5 miles east.
- St. Cloud —Roosevelt Road from Jct. T.H. 23 to south city limits.
- St. Paul —DALE STREET FROM GRAND AVENUE TO LARPENTEUR AVENUE.  
PLATO BOULEVARD FROM WATER STREET TO FILLMORE AVENUE.  
CHESTER STREET FROM T.H. 3 TO PLATO BOULEVARD.  
NORTH CLEVELAND AVENUE FROM UNIVERSITY AVENUE SOUTH TO WABASH AVENUE, THEN WABASH AVENUE ON NORTH CLEVELAND TO VANDALIA STREET, THEN VANDALIA STREET TO I-94.  
EAST SEVENTH STREET FROM EAST MINNEHAHA AVENUE TO ATLANTIC STREET, THEN ATLANTIC STREET NORTH TO RAILROAD TRACKS.  
WACOUTA STREET FROM I-94 TO FIFTH STREET, THEN FIFTH STREET FROM WACOUTA STREET TO BROADWAY.  
SHEPARD ROAD FROM T.H. 5 TO WARNER ROAD. THEN WARNER ROAD FROM ITS INTERSECTION WITH SHEPARD ROAD TO T.H. 61.  
FROM T.H. 5 (WEST 7TH STREET) TO EAGLE STREET VIA RAMSEY STREET (GRAND AVENUE), SHERMAN STREET AND EXCHANGE STREET.  
KELLOGG BOULEVARD RAMP FROM EAGLE STREET TO WASHINGTON STREET.  
KELLOGG BOULEVARD FROM WASHINGTON STREET TO T.H. 61 (MOUNDS BOULEVARD).  
ELWAY STREET FROM SHEPARD ROAD TO MONTREAL AVENUE. THEN MONTREAL AVENUE FROM ELWAY STREET TO STEWART AVENUE. THEN STEWART AVENUE TO TEXACO TERMINAL.  
MINNEHAHA AVENUE WEST FROM DALE STREET TO ARUNDEL STREET.  
OTTO AVENUE FROM SHEPARD ROAD TO WEST 7TH STREET.  
WHITE BEAR AVENUE FROM I-94 TO EAST MINNEHAHA AVENUE.  
EAST MINNEHAHA AVENUE FROM WHITE BEAR AVENUE TO BIRMINGHAM STREET.  
CHILDS ROAD FROM WARNER ROAD TO THE SOUTHERLY LIMITS OF CHILDS ROAD.  
PRIOR AVENUE FROM UNIVERSITY AVENUE TO PIERCE BUTLER ROUTE.  
PIERCE BUTLER ROUTE FROM PRIOR AVENUE TO SNELLING AVENUE.  
MOUNDS BOULEVARD FROM I-94 TO EAST SEVENTH STREET.  
SNELLING AVENUE (T.H. 51).
- Sauk Centre —4th Street north from T.H. 71 to 331 North 4th Street.
- Wells —Broadway Avenue from T.H. 109 south to 7th Street S.E.
- Worthington —Oxford Street from T.H. 60 to T.H. 266.

### County Roads

- Anoka —CSAH 23 (Naples Street) from CSAH 32 to County Road 105.  
County Road 102 (57th Avenue) from T.H. 47 to Main Street (County Road 102).  
County Road 102 (Main Street) from 57th Avenue to CSAH (44th Avenue).  
CSAH 32 (85TH AVENUE) FROM 3601 85TH AVENUE TO 3701 85TH AVENUE.  
CSAH 7 (7th Avenue) from T.H. 10 to Tyler Street (in Anoka).  
T.H. 242 (Main Street) from T.H. 10 to 9th Avenue (in Anoka).
- Becker —CSAH 10 CONNECTIONS TO T.H. 10.  
CSAH 10 from T.H. 10 west of Frazee to T.H. 10 east of Frazee.  
CSAH 7 from T.H. 10 to Front Street in City of Lake Park.  
CSAH 10 from T.H. 87 to South County Line.

- CSAH 13 from T.H. 10 to Eagle Street in City of Audubon.  
 CSAH 30 from T.H. 87 to River Drive in City of Frazee.  
 CSAH 84 from T.H. 59 to Soo Line Railroad in City of Callaway.
- Carlton —CSAH 1 from Jct. T.H. 210 (Carlton) to Conoco Refinery (Wrenshall).
- Clay —CSAH 11 FROM T.H. 10 TO TRUCK STOP ½ MILE SOUTH OF I-94.  
 CSAH 52 FROM JCT. T.H. 9 (BARNESVILLE) TO JCT. I-94 (MOORHEAD).
- Dakota —CSAH 32 from Jct. I-35 east 0.3 miles.
- Douglas —CSAH 41 FROM I-94 TO ITS JCT. WITH CSAH 82.  
 CSAH 82 FROM CSAH 41 TO ITS JCT. WITH T.H. 29 IN ALEXANDRIA.
- Freeborn —CSAH 26 from Milwaukee Railroad Tracks to Jct. I-90.  
 CSAH 31 from Railroad Tracks to Jct. I-35.
- Hennepin —CSAH 1 (OLD SHAKOPEE ROAD) —FROM NESBITT AVENUE TO I-35W.  
 CSAH 3 (EXCELSIOR BLVD.) —FROM CSAH 18 TO T.H. 100.  
 CSAH 10 (BASS LAKE ROAD) —FROM I-494 TO CSAH 156.  
 CSAH 15 (SHORELINE BLVD.) —FROM CSAH 110 TO CSAH 19.  
 CSAH 18 —FROM I-494 TO T.H. 7.  
 CSAH 18 —FROM CSAH 10 TO I-94.  
 CSAH 19 —FROM T.H. 7 TO CSAH 15.  
 CSAH 20 (BLAKE ROAD) —FROM CSAH 3 TO T.H. 7.  
 CSAH 34 (NORMANDALE BLVD.) —FROM CSAH 1 (OLD SHAKOPEE ROAD) TO I-494.  
 CSAH 61 —From Jct. I-94 to County Road 130.  
 CSAH 109 (85TH AVENUE NORTH) —FROM CSAH 18 TO T.H. 52.  
 CSAH 156 (WINNETKA AVENUE) —FROM CSAH 9 TO CSAH 10.  
 County Road 130 —From CSAH 61 to 0.45 miles northwest.
- Martin —CSAH 50 from CSAH 52 to Jct. T.H. 16.  
 CSAH 52 from 2nd Street West in Truman to CSAH 50.  
 CSAH 39 from CSAH 26 to Jct. I-90.  
 County Road 145 from CSAH 38 to T.H. 15.
- McLeod —CSAH 9 from Plato to T.H. 212.  
 CSAH 21 from North County Line to Winsted.  
 County Road 81 in Glencoe.
- Otter Tail —CSAH 8 from T.H. 10 to North City Limits of Perham.  
 CSAH 10 (Old T.H. 10) From Jct. T.H. 10 to North Otter Tail Co. Line near Frazee.  
 CSAH 67 From Jct. CSAH 84 to South Limits of New York Mills.  
 CSAH 80 from Southeast Jct. T.H. 10 to northwest Jct. T.H. 10.  
 CSAH 84 from Southeast Jct. T.H. 10 to northwest Jct. T.H. 10.
- Pine —CSAH 61 FROM JCT. OF T.H. 361 AND T.H. 324 TO ITS JCT. WITH CSAH 11 IN PINE CITY.

**KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

## ADOPTED RULES

---

---

- COUNTY ROAD 55 FROM CSAH 61 TO INDUSTRIAL PARK—PINE CITY.  
CSAH 8 FROM CSAH 61 TO EAST 2ND STREET.
- Ramsey —COUNTY ROAD D (CSAH 19) FROM OLD T.H. 8 TO I-35W.  
OLD HIGHWAY 8 (CSAH 77) FROM COUNTY ROAD D TO FIRST STREET SOUTHWEST.  
CLEVELAND AVENUE (CSAH 46) FROM COUNTY ROAD C TO COUNTY ROAD C-2.  
COUNTY ROAD C (CSAH 23) FROM WEST COUNTY LINE TO PRIOR AVENUE.  
COUNTY ROAD J (CSAH 1) (OR 85TH AVENUE N.E.) IN ANOKA.  
COUNTY CSAH 32 FROM I-35 TO 3701 85TH AVENUE N.E
- \*Redwood —CSAH 7 from Seaforth to Jct. T.H. 19.  
CSAH 1 and 16 from Clements to Jct. T.H. 71.  
CSAH 4 and 17 from Wanda to Jct. T.H. 71.  
CSAH 6 and 9 from Delhi to Jct. T.H. 19.  
CSAH 25 and 100 from west Jct. C. & N.W. Ry. in North Redwood to south Jct. C. & N.W. Ry.  
CSAH 10 and 30 from Lucan to Jct. T.H. 19.  
CSAH 101 from North Redwood to Jct. T.H. 19.  
CR 70 from Rowena to Jct. T.H. 71.  
CR 80—entire segment.
- Sherburne —CSAH 11 from T.H. 25 to T.H. 10.
- Stearns —CSAH 75 from west Jct. I-94 to Jct. T.H. 23 in Waite Park.  
CSAH 75 from south city limits of St. Cloud to Jct. I-94 near St. Augusta.
- Steele —CSAH 1 (North Street) from CSAH 45 (Hoffman Drive) east to CSAH 1 (North Cedar) in Owatonna.  
CSAH 1 (North Cedar) from CSAH 1 (North Street) north to 11th Street in Owatonna.  
CSAH 8 (Grove Street) from CSAH 19 (Rose Street) north and east to Cherry Street in Owatonna.  
CSAH 9 from I-35 Exit #45 east to CSAH 45.  
CSAH 19 (Rose Street) from CSAH 45 (Hoffman Drive) east to CSAH-8 (Grove Street) in Owatonna.  
CSAH 25 (Bridge Street) from CR 75 (24th Avenue N.W.) east to I-35 In Owatonna.  
CSAH 34 from I-35 Exit #43 east to CSAH 45.  
CSAH 45 (Hoffman Drive in Owatonna) from North Steele County Line to T.H. 14.  
CSAH 45 (Cedar and Oak Streets) from T.H. 218 and 14 Exit North to Pearl Street in Owatonna.  
CSAH 45 (Hoffman Drive) from T.H. 14 in Owatonna south to CSAH 19 (Rose Street).  
CSAH 48 (Main Street) from T.H. 218 and 14 north and west to CSAH 45 (Oak Avenue) in Owatonna.  
CR 75 (24th Avenue N.W.) from T.H. 14 south to CSAH 25 (Bridge Street) in Owatonna.
- Stevens —CSAH 13 Chokio only.  
CSAH 9 Alberta only.  
CSAH 8 from CSAH 1 to Jct. T.H. 9 (Hancock).
- Traverse —CSAH 4 Browns Valley only.  
CSAH 100 from 12th Street to Jct. T.H. 75.
- Waseca —CSAH 3 from Waldorf to Jct. T.H. 14.  
CSAH 9 from west county line to CSAH 3.  
CSAH 12 from CSAH 1 to T.H. 13.

\*These are seasonally restricted 10 ton routes. Effective period to carry the increased weights is from July 15th each year until the following springload restrictions go into effect.



CSAH 2 from County Road 53 to T.H. 14.  
CSAH 53 from CSAH 2 to CSAH 5.  
CSAH 5 from County Road 53 to CSAH 30.  
CSAH 30 from CSAH 5 to T.H. 13.

Washington —CSAH 16 from the west ramps of I-94 to Woodland Drive in Woodbury.  
CSAH 21 from CSAH 28 to CSAH 23.  
CSAH 22 FROM T.H. 61 TO JCT. WITH CSAH 38.  
CSAH 23 from CSAH 21 to Lookout Trail North (T.H. 36).  
CSAH 38 FROM JCT. WITH CSAH 22 TO JCT. WITH I-494.  
CSAH 28 from State Prison entrance road to CSAH 21.

Winona —County Road 23 from Jct. T.H. 14 to the Jct. T.H. 61 (Minnesota City).

Dated this 15th day of January, 1982.

Richard P. Braun  
Commissioner of Transportation

---

---

**SUPREME COURT**

**Decision Filed Friday, January 8, 1982**

**Compiled by John McCarthy, Clerk**

81-22/Sp. State of Minnesota v. Wallace E. Hamling, Appellant. Ramsey County.

Evidence that defendant intentionally aided in the kidnapping of two people was sufficient to support the verdict.

Trial court did not commit prejudicial error in admitting in-court eyewitness identification testimony which defendant contends had been ordered suppressed by omnibus court, where defense counsel was unable to establish to the satisfaction of trial court that omnibus court had suppressed the evidence or that the identification evidence was unreliable.

Affirmed. Otis, J.

**Decisions Filed Thursday, December 17, 1981**

81-40/Sp. Robert K. Brown, Appellant, v. Dayton Hudson Corporation, *et al.*, City of Minneapolis, *et al.* Hennepin County.

The discretionary decision whether to charge and whether to continue a prosecution is a quasi-judicial decision which lies at the very heart of the prosecutorial function.

A public prosecutor acting within the scope of his duties by filing and maintaining criminal charges is absolutely immune from civil liability, notwithstanding allegations of negligence, improper motive or lack of probable cause.

The trial court did not err in granting summary judgment.

Affirmed. Todd, J. Concurring specially, Otis, J.

51470 Winifred Haeussler, *et al.*, v. Richard Braun, Commissioner of Transportation, State of Minnesota, Appellant. Hennepin County.

Landowners owning property abutting a public street possess as appurtenant to their lots implied easements for light, air and view over the public street.

**KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

## SUPREME COURT

---

---

It is only when the street is put to an improper street use that an additional servitude is placed on the implied easements and a taking can be found.

Construction of sound barriers along an interstate to reduce the noises flowing from the interstate is a proper street use.

In an action in inverse condemnation, the petitioner need not prove with exactitude the diminution in market value caused by the substantial invasion of his property right, but he must show with certainty that a diminution has occurred.

Reversed. Amdahl, J. Dissenting, Wahl, J. and Yetka, J. Conc. spec. Simonett, J.

## OFFICIAL NOTICES

---

---

Pursuant to the provisions of Minn. Stat. § 15.0412, subd. 6, an agency, in preparing proposed rules, may seek information or opinion from sources outside the agency. Notices of intent to solicit outside opinion must be published in the *State Register* and all interested persons afforded the opportunity to submit data or views on the subject, either orally or in writing.

The *State Register* also publishes other official notices of state agencies, notices of meetings, and matters of public interest.

---

### Minnesota Energy Agency Data & Analysis Division

#### Recertification of the Sherburne County Generating Unit No. 3 as Proposed by Northern States Power Company, Southern Minnesota Municipal Power Agency, and United Minnesota Municipal Power Agency, Joint Applicants

##### Notice of Availability of the Environmental Report

Notice is hereby given that the Minnesota Energy Agency has prepared an environmental report in conjunction with the certificate of need applications for the proposed Sherco 3 power plant, in accordance with 6 MCAR § 3.025 G.2.a. Comments on the report should be submitted at the public hearings on the applications, which will begin at 1:00 p.m. on February 8, 1982, in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, Becker, Minnesota. A complete list of the scheduled hearing dates and locations is given at 6 S.R. 1146. Information on the hearings may also be obtained by calling David L. Jacobson at (612) 296-7502, or toll-free, (800) 652-9747.

The environmental report has been distributed to several libraries throughout the state, as well as to each regional development commission. A limited number of copies are available for distribution to interested persons and groups. Libraries which have been sent copies of the report include the following:

- Minnesota Energy Agency Library, 9th Floor,  
150 E. Kellogg Boulevard, St. Paul
- Legislative Reference Library, 111 State Capitol, St. Paul
- Environmental Conservation Library, 300 Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis
- Polk County-Crookston Library, 120 North Ash Street, Crookston
- Bemidji Public Library, Sixth and Beltrami, Bemidji
- Duluth Public Library, 101 West Second, Duluth
- Fergus Falls Public Library, 125 North Union, Fergus Falls
- Kitchigami Regional Library, Pine River
- Crow Wing Regional Library, 410 West Fifth, Willmar
- Chippewa County Library, 224 South First Street, Montevideo
- East Central Regional Library, 240 Third Avenue SW, Cambridge
- Great River Regional Library, 124 South Fifth Avenue, St. Cloud
- Marshall-Lyon County Library, 301 West Lyon Street, Marshall

Minnesota Valley Regional Library, 100 East Main Street, Mankato  
Rochester Public Library, Broadway at First Street SE, Rochester  
Austin Public Library, 201 Second Ave. NW, Austin  
Owatonna Free Public Library, 105 North Elm Street, Owatonna  
Dated: January 18, 1982

David L. Jacobson, Manager  
Certificate of Need Program

## **Health Department**

### **Notice of Application for Expansion of Life Support Transportation Service Area by Oakdale Volunteer Fire Department**

As of January 18, a complete application submitted by the City of Oakdale was on file with the Department of Health for an expansion of its primary service area to include a base of operation located at 6279 50th Street North, Oakdale, Mn. 55109. The proposed name of the life support transportation service is Oakdale Volunteer Fire Department, Inc.

This notice is given pursuant to Minnesota Statutes § 144.802 (1979), which requires that the Commissioner of Health shall publish the notice in the *State Register* at the applicant's expense, and in a newspaper in the municipality in which the service will be provided, or if no newspaper is published in the municipality, or if the service would be provided in more than one municipality, in a newspaper published at the county seat of the county or counties in which the service would be provided. Each municipality, county, community health services agency, and any other interested person wishing to comment on this application may submit comments to the Metropolitan Health Board, 300 Metro Square Building, Seventh & Robert Sts., St. Paul, Mn. 55101, before the close of business on February 18, 1982.

After a public hearing has been held in the municipality in which the service is to be located, the Metropolitan Health Board shall recommend that the Commissioner of Health grant or deny a license or recommend that a modified license be granted. The Metropolitan Health Board shall make the recommendations and reasons available to any individual requesting them.

Within 30 days of receipt of the Metropolitan Health Board's recommendations, the Commissioner of Health shall grant or deny the license to this applicant.

## **Office of the Secretary of State**

### **Notice of Vacancies in Multi-member State Agencies**

Notice is hereby given to the public that vacancies have occurred in multi-member state agencies, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 15.0597, subd. 4. Application forms may be obtained at the Office of the Secretary of State, 180 State Office Building, St. Paul 55155-1299; (612) 296-7876. Application deadline is February 9, 1982.

**INTERGOVERNMENTAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS ADVISORY COUNCIL** has 1 vacancy open immediately for a member residing in a city of the 2nd class outside the Metro area. The council assists local governments in developing automated information systems by awarding grants. Meetings are monthly. For specific information, contact the Intergovernmental Information Systems Advisory Council at 245 E. 6th St., St. Paul 55101; (612) 297-2172.

**METROPOLITAN COUNCIL** has 1 vacancy open immediately for a resident of Council District 1 (which is entirely within the City of St. Paul). The council coordinates planning and development of the 7 county Twin Cities metropolitan area; establishes a long range development plan containing regional plans for aging, the arts, aviation, health, housing, law and justice, parks and open space, solid waste, transportation, wastewater management and water resources; review the long range plans of local governments, receives and disburses grant money; approves the financial plans of regional agencies; provides technical assistance to other governmental units; conducts research; and provides information to the public. Members appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the Senate. Members cannot hold elected public office; term ends January, 1983. Members must file with EPB. Meetings are twice a month, Metro Square Bldg. Members receive \$50 per diem plus expenses. For specific information contact the Metro Council at 300 Metro Square Bldg., St. Paul 55101; (612) 291-6359.

STATE OF MINNESOTA

State Register and Public Documents Division  
117 University Avenue  
St. Paul, Minnesota 55155

**ORDER FORM**

**State Register.** Minnesota's official weekly publication for agency rules and notices, executive orders of the Governor, state contracts, Supreme Court and Tax Court decisions.

- \_\_\_\_\_ Annual subscription \$130.00
- \_\_\_\_\_ Single copies \$3.00 each

**The 1979-80 Audio Visual Catalog.** A 275-page catalog of state agency films, slides and tapes available to the public.

- \_\_\_\_\_ Single copy \$4.50 + \$.23 (sales tax) = \$4.73\* each

**Session Laws of Minnesota—1981.** Two volumes. Laws enacted during the 1981 legislative session. Inquire about back volumes. \$25 + \$1.25 (sales tax) = \$26.25.

**State Register Binder.** Durable 3½ inch, forest green binders imprinted with the *State Register* logo.

- \_\_\_\_\_ *State Register Binder* \$6.00 + \$.30 (sales tax) = \$6.30\* each

**State Register Index.** Contains cumulative findings aids to Volume 5 of the *State Register*, including MCAR Amendments and Additions, Executive Orders List, Executive Orders Index, Agency Index, Subject Matter Index.

- \_\_\_\_\_ Single copy \$5.00

**Minnesota Statutes Supplement—1981.** One volume. \$25 + \$1.25 (sales tax) = \$26.25.

**Worker's Compensation Decisions.** Volume 34. Selected landmark decisions of the Worker's Compensation Court of Appeals. Available by annual subscription, with quarterly update service.

- \_\_\_\_\_ Annual subscription \$50.00

**Documents Center Catalog—1981-82.** Complete listing of all items available through the Documents Center. Agency rules, brochures, studies, catalogs, maps, prints, commemorative items and much more.

- \_\_\_\_\_ FREE COPY

\*To avoid Minnesota sales tax, please include your Certificate of Exempt Status issued by the Minnesota Department of Revenue.

Please enclose full amount for items ordered. Make check or money order payable to "State of Minnesota."

Name \_\_\_\_\_

Attention of: \_\_\_\_\_

Street \_\_\_\_\_

City \_\_\_\_\_ State \_\_\_\_\_ Zip \_\_\_\_\_

Telephone \_\_\_\_\_

**FOR LEGISLATIVE NEWS**

Publications containing news and information from the Minnesota Senate and House of Representatives are available free to concerned citizens and the news media. To be placed on the mailing list, write or call the offices listed below:

**Briefly/Preview**—Senate news and committee calendar; published weekly during legislative sessions. Contact Senate Public Information Office, Room B29 State Capitol, St. Paul MN 55155, (612) 296-0504.

**Perspectives**—Publication about the Senate. Contact Senate Information Office.

**Weekly Wrap-Up**—House committees, committee assignments of individual representatives, news on committee meetings and action, House action and bill introductions. Contact House Information Office, Room 8 State Capitol, St. Paul, MN, (612) 296-2146.

**This Week**—weekly interim bulletin of the House. Contact House Information Office.

Law Library  
117 University  
Interoffice